# DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

# Health Advisory: Zika Travelers Update

Minnesota Department of Health Mon March 11 13:00 CDT 2019

#### **Action Steps**

**Local and tribal health departments:** Please forward to hospitals and clinics in your jurisdictions. **Hospitals and clinics:** Please distribute to anyone caring for returning travelers, especially pregnant women.

## Health care providers:

- MDH is no longer routinely recommending testing for asymptomatic pregnant women with recent possible exposure to Zika but no travel to current outbreak areas. These pregnancies should still be closely monitored for any abnormalities.
- Testing may be recommended on a case-by-case basis for asymptomatic pregnant women with ongoing Zika virus exposure, travel to current outbreak areas, or prenatal ultrasound findings suggestive of congenital Zika virus infection.
- Testing is still recommended for anyone with symptoms of Zika that has traveled to current Zika outbreak or risk areas.
- Providers should contact MDH before submitting specimens for Zika testing by calling 651-201-5414 or 1-877-676-5414.

## Background:

Based on currently available data on risk, the spread of Zika has slowed in many areas, and many countries that formerly had outbreaks are now experiencing a lull in disease activity. This does not mean that disease risk is gone. The virus is still present in these areas, and outbreaks may occur at any time. It is also important to consider that countries around the world vary widely in their ability to monitor, detect, and report Zika virus activity so it is impossible for us to provide a thorough risk assessment at the local level. Due to differences in surveillance and monitoring there may be delays in identifying an outbreak.

Although Zika may be less common than it was a few years ago, it's important for people to remember that severe birth defects, as well as miscarriage and stillbirth, can occur after exposure to the virus during pregnancy. Recommendations related to family planning (i.e., waiting 8 weeks (women) and 3 months (men) until trying to conceive) and condom use during pregnancy for couples with exposures remain in place.

#### Updated CDC Travel Guidance for Zika Virus:

Previous guidance recommended that pregnant women not travel to any area with risk of Zika. The updated guidance (<u>https://wwwnc.cdc.gov/travel/page/zika-travel-information</u>) now recommends that pregnant women and couples planning to become pregnant within three months talk to their healthcare providers to carefully consider the risks and possible consequences of travel to areas with risk of Zika. CDC and MDH continue to recommend that pregnant women not travel to any areas currently experiencing a Zika outbreak.

The current CDC map only reflects available epidemiological evidence of Zika virus within countries around the world. It is important to note that this information is highly dependent on the resources and infrastructure available in the countries themselves. This means that low-level activity and outbreaks may not be reflected in the CDC map in a timely manner or, potentially, at all.

#### For more information

Visit the CDC web page for more detailed Testing Guidance <u>https://www.cdc.gov/zika/hc-providers/testing-guidance.html</u> or for more information about Pregnant Women and Zika <u>https://www.cdc.gov/pregnancy/zika/protect-yourself.html</u>

A copy of this HAN is available at <u>https://www.health.state.mn.us/communities/ep/han/index.html</u> The content of this message is intended for public health and health care personnel and response partners who have a need to know the information to perform their duties.